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Via email  
 

September 01, 2021 
 

Ms. Elizabeth Witmer, Chair 
Workplace Safety & Insurance Board 
200 Front Street West 
Toronto ON M5V 3J1 

 and Mr. Tom Bell, Acting President & CEO 
Workplace Safety & Insurance Board 
200 Front Street West 
Toronto ON M5V 3J1 

Dear Ms. Witmer and Mr. Bell: 

Re: Prolonged Loss of Earnings benefits due to COVID-19 

I hope that you enjoyed your summer.  As we continue to adapt to these trying times, life’s small 
pleasures become all the more important.   

I am writing to re-introduce an issue I first raised more than a year ago at the commencement of 
the COVID-19 protocols and policy responses.  This issue was formally raised by the CEC on April 23, 
2020 (see Appendix A at Proposal 5).   As time has passed and Ontario employers have continued to 
adjust to COVID-19 impacts, COVID-19 continues to unfairly prolong loss of earnings (“LOE”) benefits 
for which employers are held accountable (for non-COVID-19 claims).  This issue remains and needs to 
be addressed.   

Since the April 23, 2020 correspondence, this issue has been discussed several times (during 
various meetings and correspondence exchanges), most notably in the September 14, 2020 Chair 
Advisory meeting, in my email message to Diane Weber of October 22, 2020 (Appendix B), the CEC’s 
February 1, 2021 letter (Appendix C) and in the June 21, 2021 Chair Advisory meeting.  The Board has 
neither agreed nor disagreed with our suggested action, which is:  

Where the evidence clearly supports that the LOE benefits have been extended/paid because of COVID-19 
related issues these costs should be removed from the employer’s record/claim and allocated in the same way 
that the Board determined all COVID-19 claim costs should be removed from individual employer accounts. 

The Board has admitted that there are claims prolonged due to COVID-19.  Previously I have 
provided identity protected examples where this clearly occurred (see Appendix B).  A client has now 
provided instructions to provide you with the details of a particular case for your consideration.  This case 
provides an excellent example where an employer warrants relief from COVID-19 caused excess costs. 
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In this claim there have been approximately seven-and-a-half (7.5) months of full LOE benefits and 
return to work (“RTW”) services provided to the Worker as he could not or was delayed in obtaining 
required education and a job placement (a position was identified/offered but subsequently rescinded due 
to COVID-19).    We have outlined details of this specific claim below.  

Claim No.  Mr. : 

 Correspondence from the WSIB Return to Work Specialist [“RTWS”] dated January 30, 2020 
indicates that Mr.  [the “Worker”] was to undergo upgrading/training from January 14, 
2020 to April 24, 2020 and then progress was to be reviewed.  The original Work Transition Plan 
[“WTP”] agreement confirms ESL training was to take place from January 13, 2020 to April 24, 
2020. 

 On March 31, 2020 the RTWS advised that because of COVID-19 the school where the Worker 
was doing his ESL training closed, as did the job search location.  The RTWS advised that when 
COVID-19 has been resolved his work transition [“WT”] plan will probably be extended as the 
Worker will not have had sufficient ESL training to move forward. 

 The Worker resumed his ESL training on August 4, 2020 and the RTWS advised his entire WT 
program was expected to be finished by December 4, 2020.  The RTWS would start looking for a 
work placement for the Worker. 

 On September 21, 2020 the RTWS advised that the worker’s ESL training was scheduled to end 
on December 4, 2020.  She will be looking for a job placement for him, however, if none is found 
he will have 2 weeks of job search training and 10 weeks of job search.  The entire plan should be 
complete by March, 2021.   

 On January 18, 2021 the RTWS advised there were issues in terms of securing a job placement 
due to the lockdown.  There was a potential placement with , however, that 
placement opportunity was paused due to the lockdown and on January 15, 2021 they confirmed 
with her that they won’t be offering the placement at this time due to COVID-19. 

 On February 4, 2021 the RTWS advised that the service provider was suggesting another 28-
week combination program of placement and in class training.  However, the RTWS was unsure 
as to when the school would reopen for in class learning and the required language assessment 
could not be completed until it was open.  The RTWS advised that in the absence of COVID-19 
the Worker’s RTW plan would have ended at the end of March, 2021. 

 On February 22, 2021 the RTWS advised that she accepted another 16 weeks of ESL training + 
12 weeks of placement and job search services.   

 On July 15, 2021 the RTWS advised that the Worker has moved to , ON.  She advised that 
she has started a job placement search, however, there is less opportunity in the Worker’s new 
city.  She stated she is going to engage employment services as well.  Basically, she will use both 
services and see which pans out first.  She is going to open up the search and if unable to find a 
placement will look for employment instead.  
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 On August 6, 2021 the RTWS advised she still has two (2) service providers working to find a 
placement or employment for the Worker with no results yet.  The area of search has been 
expanded noting that the Worker moved to , Ontario, however, the job opportunities are 
not as good in such a rural area.  The Worker’s file will be closed on October 15, 2021.   

In summary, the Worker’s ESL training was delayed in the initial stages of the return-to-work plan 
as it was interrupted due to COVID-19.  The potential job placement fell through as a result of the 
December 26, 2020 lockdown period.  Because of the Worker’s lack of job prospects the service provider 
proposed 28 more weeks of combined job placement activity and ESL training and, if no job after that, 
another 12 weeks of job search.  The RTWS agreed the interruption in the ability to locate a job 
placement was due to the COVID-19 lockdown.  The original end date for the Worker’s return to work 
plan was the end of March, 2021, however, the file will not be closed now until October 15, 2021.  In the 
absence of the COVID-19 lockdown the Worker would have been engaged in a job placement at  

 by December, 2020 and his file would have been closed in March, 2021.  Consequently, 
there was an additional 7.5 months added to the plan due to the COVID-19 interruptions. 

While there is currently no specific policy mechanism to facilitate this request, it is my opinion that 
the merits and justice provisions of Workplace Safety and Insurance Act [“WSIA”] (s. 119(1)) would 
apply and would rise to sufficient authority to remove costs in such cases. If it is the Board’s position that 
the merits and justice provision of the WSIA do not provide sufficient authority, then the Board must 
address this issue through specific policy. This request is completely consistent with the Board’s policy to 
ensure that individual employers should not be responsible for COVD-19 claim costs. 

I look forward to hearing from you and would welcome a conversation.  You can reach me directly 
at lal@laliversidge.com or 416-986-1166. 

Regards, 

  
L.A. Liversidge 
 
cc:  Diane Weber, Special Advisor to the Chair 

Redacted copy to David Frame, CEC 
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